
  
BELLBROOK CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
January 11, 2021 
 
REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETING** 
Due to COVID-19, this meeting will be held via Zoom webinar teleconferencing. 
Live streaming of the meeting is available on the City’s government channel 
(via Spectrum/Ch 5) and YouTube channel (Bellbrook City Hall). 
Should any member of the public wish to speak they do so by logging in as an 
attendee following links at the end of this agenda.  You may also submit 
comments by emailing the Clerk of Council at p.timmons@cityofbellbrook.org by 3 p.m. on 1/11/2021.  
 
7:00 pm-Regular Meeting 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

3. Roll Call 

4. Approval of the minutes of December 14, 2020 

5. Mayor’s Announcements and Special Guest 

• Service Director Ryan Pasley on EPA Notice  
• Swearing in of Fire Chief Anthony Bizzarro 

6. Public Hearing of Ordinances 

7. Introduction of Ordinances  

• Ordinance 2021-1 Ordinance Amending Zoning Code Section 20.08 “Proceedings of the 
Board of Zoning Appeals” of the Bellbrook Zoning Code (Middlestetter) 

• Ordinance 2021-2 Ordinance Repealing Old Chapter 1244, “Zoning Permits and 
Certificates” of the Bellbrook Municipal Code and Enacting New Chapter 1244 “Zoning 
Permits and Certificates” of the Bellbrook Municipal Code (Van Veldhuizen) 

8. Resolutions 

• Resolution 2021-A A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Three Year 
Agreement between the City of Bellbrook and the International Association of Fire 
Fighters (Greenwood) 

• Resolution 2021-B A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager/Finance Director to File 
with the Greene County Auditor a Request for Advances of Taxes Collected (Edwards) 

9. City Manager Report 

10. Old Business 

11. New Business 

12. Committee Reports  

A. Service 

City of Bellbrook 
15 E. Franklin Street 
Bellbrook, Ohio  45305 

T (937) 848-4666 
F (937) 848-5190 

www.cityofbellbrook.org 



B. Safety 
C. Finance/Audit  
D. Community Affairs  

13. Clerk’s Update 

• City board positions:  2 positions on the Planning Board and 1 on the Records 
Commission 

14. Open Discussion 

15. Public Comment 

16. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Future Agenda Items  

• January 25th:  
o City Manager Performance Review 
o Resolution Approving the Amended Solid Waste Management Plan of the 

Greene County Solid Waste Management District  
o Resolution Designating KeyBank as Depositor for the City 

• Future Work Sessions 
o January 18th – 2021 City Goals Planning Work Session 
o CIC Follow up  
o Capital Improvements 

• Legislative Items: 
o Legislation to be considered from Planning Board 

 Vacancy Registration Requirements 
 18.20(B) – Sign Code 
 Article 14  

 
 

Zoom Meeting Information: 

Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89544009783?pwd=VnZxUEw2WG12TGY5RHZHQmRiMjUrUT09 

Website: www.zoom.us  
Webinar ID: 886 0511 0085 
Passcode: 091683 
Telephone: (312) 626-6799 

http://www.zoom.us/


RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

December 14, 2020 

 1 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic the December 14, 2020 City Council Meeting was conducted using 

Zoom’s remote webinar platform. 

PRESENT: T.J. Hoke 
Ernie Havens 
David Van Veldhuizen 
Forrest Greenwood  
Elaine Middlestetter  
Nick Edwards 
Mayor Mike Schweller 

ALSO PRESENT:   City Manager Melissa Dodd 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mayor Schweller called the executive session to discuss the for the purpose of considering the 

employment and compensation of the clerk of council at 6:00 pm.  Mr. Edwards made a motion to enter 

into executive session.  Dr. Van Veldhuizen seconded the motion.  

REGULAR MEETING 

Mayor Schweller called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

ROLL CALL 

Mr. Hoke, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; 

Mr. Edwards, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

After polling the members of City Council about the regular meeting minutes of November 23, 2020 

Mayor Schweller declared the minutes approved. 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

December 14, 2020 

 2 

MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Mayor Schweller expressed his condolences at the passing of Mary Frantz.  Mrs. Frantz served on 

the School Board for 31 years.  Prior to that she served on several city committees and she will be 

missed by the city of Bellbrook. 

The Mayor announced that Fire Chief Jim Neidhard is retiring on December 31 after seven years with the 

City of Bellbrook.  He explained that when Chief Neidhard joined the Bellbrook Fire Department it was 

in need of stability and leadership which the Chief brought to the position.  He will be missed by the staff 

and citizens of Bellbrook.  Under the Chief, the Fire Department attained an ISO rating of 2 which puts 

us in the top three percent in the nation among fire departments.  He helped secure a grant for the CPR 

LUCAS devices and has updated the department’s technology.  Staffing has been increased to the 

appropriate amount for our city.  Adding a fitness center was a great improvement and he has 

encouraged the fire fighters to pursue educational opportunities.  Chief Neidhard was also named a 

Hometown Hero by the Optimist Club. 

Fire Chief Jim Neidhard thanked the Mayor and Council for their kind words and support.  He added that 

coming to Bellbrook was one of the best decisions he ever made.  He shared how he came to be a fire 

fighter considering as a child he wanted to be a police officer.  His story followed his life and career and 

ends with his hopeful plans for retirement.  He thanked everyone who has been part of his story. 

Council members each expressed their well wishes and shared stories about the Chief. 

Mayor Schweller introduced Robert Middlestetter who is receiving a plaque commemorating his 30 

years of service to the city of Bellbrook.  The Clerk expounded on Mr. Middlestetter’s service listing 13 

years on City Council, 10 years on the Board of Zoning Appeals and Property Review Commission, and 

20 years as a Museum Trustee.   

Mr. Middlestetter expressed his thanks and stated how much he enjoyed serving his city and hopes 

others will follow in that example.  Council members expressed their thanks and including his wife, 

Council member Elaine Middlestetter.  

PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCES - 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

December 14, 2020 
 

   3  

Mr. Edwards read Ordinance 2020-13 An Ordinance Approving the Appropriations of the City of 

Bellbrook for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021. 

The City Manager explained that this is only for operating expenses. Capital expenses have been extracted 

and will be discussed more in depth after the first of the year for later inclusion in the budget.  Mrs. Dodd 

went through the Budget presentation. 

Mr. Edwards made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2020-13 An Ordinance Approving the Appropriations 

of the City of Bellbrook for the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2021.  Mr. Hoke seconded the motion.  

The Clerk called the roll.  Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. Hoke, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mr. 

Greenwood, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes.  The motion passed 7-0. 

 

Mr. Havens read Ordinance 2020-14 An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2020-10 to Adjust the City of 

Bellbrook Appropriations. 

Mrs. Dodd stated that this is the final supplemental appropriation of the year to ensure all funds and 

major expense categories are appropriated adequately to close the year.  She explained that there 

were two last minute items: a diesel purchase by the school, and a capital improvement item that had 

not rolled over from 2019 by the time the books had closed. 

Mr. Havens moved to adopt Ordinance 2020-14 An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2020-10 to Adjust 

the City of Bellbrook Appropriations.  Mr. Greenwood seconded the motion.  The Clerk called the roll.  

Mr. Havens, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mr. Hoke, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; 

Mr. Edwards, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes.  The motion passed 7-0. 

 

Dr. Van Veldhuizen read Ordinance 2020-15 An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2020-14 to Adjust the 

City of Bellbrook Appropriations and Declaring an Emergency. 

Mrs. Dodd explained that this ordinance is to account for the last-minute Coronavirus Relief Funds 

received which need to be spent by December 30 and therefore the emergency declaration as a result. 

Dr. Van Veldhuizen made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2020-15 An Ordinance Amending Ordinance 

2020-14 to Adjust the City of Bellbrook Appropriations and Declaring an Emergency.  Mrs. 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

December 14, 2020 
 

   4  

Middlestetter seconded the motion.  The Clerk called the roll.  Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mrs. 

Middlestetter, yes; Mr. Hoke, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mr. Edwards, yes; Mayor 

Schweller, yes.  The motion passed 7-0. 

 

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES  - none 

 

RESOLUTIONS  

Mrs. Middlestetter read Resolution 2020-CC A Resolution Adopting the 2020 Greene County Hazard 

Mitigation Plan for the City of Bellbrook. 

Mrs. Dodd explained that this plan was developed by the County which covers the entire county.  Each 

municipality has been asked to adopt the plan by way of resolution by the end of the year.  The plan 

identifies risks that are most possible for each community.  The full document is available on the website. 

Mrs. Middlestetter moved to adopt Resolution 2020-CC A Resolution Adopting the 2020 Greene County 

Hazard Mitigation Plan for the City of Bellbrook.  Mr. Edwards seconded the motion.  The Clerk called 

the roll.  Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; Mr. Edwards, yes; Mr. Hoke, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen, 

yes; Mr. Greenwood, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes.  The motion passed 7-0. 

 

Mr. Greenwood read Resolution 2020-DD A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of Funds for 2021. 

Mrs. Dodd said this is an annual piece of legislation to coincide with the 2021 budget. 

Mr. Greenwood made a motion to adopt Resolution 2020-DD A Resolution Authorizing the Transfer of 

Funds for 2021.  The motion was seconded by Dr. Van Veldhuizen.  The Clerk called the roll.  Mr. 

Greenwood, yes; Dr. Van Veldhuizen, yes; Mr. Hoke, yes; Mr. Havens, yes; Mrs. Middlestetter, yes; Mr. 

Edwards, yes; Mayor Schweller, yes.  The motion passed 7-0.  

 

 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

December 14, 2020 
 

   5  

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

The City Manager began by expressing her appreciation and congratulations for Chief Neidhard. She 

added that she is sorry that due to the restriction on gatherings a formal celebrate of his achievements 

is not possible. 

Mrs. Dodd congratulated Anthony Bizzarro on his achievement of becoming the next Fire Chief. 

Mrs. Dodd reported that the Police Department has achieved Group 3 Ohio Collaborative Standards.  The 

Ohio Collaborative Certification process was established in 2015 to get police agencies, throughout Ohio, 

standardized on a set of identified policies, practices and procedures. To date, The Bellbrook Police 

Department has met the criteria of the following standards: 

1. Response to Resistance and Recruitment/Hiring 

2. Community Engagement and Body Worn Cameras 

3. Bias Free Policing and Investigation of Employee Misconduct 

The next standard to cover is "Vehicle Pursuits".   

The City Manager updated council on the Coronavirus Relief Funds.  The City received redistributed funds 

from the County the last week in November. An additional $22,000 was received from municipalities in 

Greene County that did not expend the original funds by the deadline. The funds are being used for one 

other network security project and in coordination with the library to install a wifi hotspot on their 

building for outdoor use. The library will be responsible for the internet used from the hotspot. The 

remainder of the funds will be used toward Police and Fire wages. 

The North West Street Sidewalk Project has been finalized and looks great! Thanks go to Service Director 

Ryan Pasley and his staff for working with the contractor to get everything coordinated. 

 

OLD BUSINESS - none 

NEW BUSINESS  - none 

 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

December 14, 2020 
 

   6  

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Service – Mr. Greenwood reported that snowflakes have been put up on the two light poles that the city 

owns.  The Service Department is prepared for any winter weather events.  

Safety – Mr. Hoke again congratulated Chief Neidhard on his retirement.  There will be a blood drive on 

December 26 at fire station 22 from 8:30 AM until 12:30 PM.  Appointments are not required but 

are encouraged.  

Finance – none 

Community Affairs – Mrs. Middlestetter announced that the Historical Museum is still open on 

Wednesdays and Saturdays through the end of December.  It will be closed January and February.  

The exhibits have been improved as overseen by Director Dwight Bartlett and curator Judy Carr. 

 

CLERK’S REPORT 

Mrs. Timmons announced the following future items: 

• January 11 – swearing in of new Fire Chief Anthony Bizzarro 
• January 18 – Council goal setting work session at 6 PM 
• January 25th - City Manager Performance Review 
• Future Work Session for CIC Follow up in February 
• Legislative Items to be considered from Planning Board 

 Vacancy Registration Requirements 
 18.20(B) – Sign Code 
 Article 14  

 

COMMENTS 

Mr. Greenwood again thanked retiring Fire Chief Jim Neidhard and he wished everyone happy holidays. 

Mr. Havens congratulated Anthony Bizzarro on his new role as Fire Chief.  He opined that although it has 

been normal to use funds from the General Fund to supplement the Fire and Police Funds, he would like 

to see a levy on a future ballot. 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
Minutes of Bellbrook City Council Regular Meeting 

December 14, 2020 
 

   7  

Mr. Hoke agreed with Mr. Havens’ suggestion.  He also thanked the community member who took it 

upon themselves to pick up litter.  He is encouraged by people who do good things without recognition.  

He also thanked the person who put lights up on the old firehouse building.   

Mrs. Middlestetter echoed the others’ well wishes to Chief Neidhard and congratulations to Anthony 

Bizzarro.  She also thanked Council and staff for how everyone handled this challenging year.  She also 

wished everyone a safe holiday. 

Dr. Van Veldhuizen added his wishes for a happy and better new year.  

Mr. Edwards expressed his appreciation for how everyone in Bellbrook has handled the challenges this 

year.   

Mayor Schweller echoed those sentiments.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT –  

Jody Martin, Executive Director of the Bellbrook Sugarcreek Chamber of Commerce, introduced herself 

to the city.  She explained that there are a lot of changes going on with the chamber and she is excited 

for what the new year will bring.   Ms. Martin can be reached at info@bellbrooksugarcreekchamber.com.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Schweller announced that there was no further business to come before the Bellbrook City 

Council and declared the regular meeting adjourned at 8:50 PM. 

 

 

______________________________________ 
Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 
 

 

____________________________________ 
Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council  

mailto:info@bellbrooksugarcreekchamber.com




RECORD OF ORDINANCES 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-1 January 25, 2021 
 

  1  

CITY OF BELLBROOK, OHIO 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  2021-1 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING CODE SECTION 20.08 “PROCEEDINGS 
OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS” OF THE BELLBROOK ZONING 
CODE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Bellbrook has adopted Chapter 20.08 “Proceedings of the Board of Zoning 
Appeals” into the Zoning Ordinances for the City of Bellbrook; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 20.08 outlines the procedure for administering the oath of witnesses by a notary 
public; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Bellbrook desires to amend the Zoning Ordinance to eliminate the 
requirement that the oath be administered by a notary public. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF BELLBROOK HEREBY ORDAINS: 

Section 1. That the following amendment to Section 20.08 “Procedures of the Board of Zoning 
Appeals” of the City of Bellbrook Zoning Code be approved with deletions shown by brackets and 
strikethrough and additions shown by italics and underlined. 

The Board shall adopt rules necessary to the conduct of its affairs in keeping with the provisions 
of this ordinance.  Meetings shall be held at the call of the chairman and at such other times as the 
Board may determine.  The Chairman, or in his absence the acting chairman, may compel the 
attendance of witnesses.  Oral testimony given as evidence must be given under oath.  Oaths will 
be administered by [a notary public] by the Board Chair or designee.  All meetings shall be open 
to the public.  The Board shall keep minutes of its proceedings, showing the vote of each appeal 
considered by the Board, and the section of this ordinance where applicable which the Board has 
considered in approving or disapproving any petition or other matter brought before the Board, 
and shall keep records of its examinations and other official actions, all of which shall be a public 
record and be immediately filed in the office of the Board.  The official copy of the minutes of all 
proceedings will be signed by the Board Chairman and Secretary.   
 

Section 2. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that 
any and all deliberations of this Council that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the 
public, in compliance with all legal requirements, including, but not limited to Section 121.22 of the Ohio 
Revised Code. 

Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period 
provided by law. 



RECORD OF ORDINANCES 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-1 January 25, 2021 
 

  2  

 
PASSED this ____day of ___________________________________, 2021. 
 
 
 
  
Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Stephen M. McHugh, Municipal Attorney 



RECORD OF ORDINANCES 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-2 January 25, 2021 
 

CITY OF BELLBROOK, OHIO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-2 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING OLD CHAPTER 1244, “ZONING PERMITS AND 
CERTIFICATES” OF THE BELLBROOK MUNICIPAL CODE AND ENACTING A NEW 
CHAPTER 1244 “ZONING PERMITS AND CERTIFICATES” OF THE BELLBROOK 
MUNICIPAL CODE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Bellbrook Municipal Code includes Chapter 1244 “Zoning Permits and 
Certificates,” which establishes the fees for zoning permits and certificates issued in the City of 
Bellbrook; and 

 WHEREAS, City Staff recommends that the old Chapter 1244 “Zoning Permits and Certificates” be 
repealed and that a new Chapter 1244 “Zoning Permits and Certificates” be enacted so the schedule of fees 
contained therein can be updated; and 

 WHEREAS, City Staff believe that an increase in the fees collected by the City for the issuance of 
zoning permits and certificates is in the best interest of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Board met on December 17, 2020, and reviewed the proposed revised fee 
schedule for permits and certificates issued by the City of Bellbrook pursuant to Chapter 1244, and the 
Planning Board recommends that City Council approve the same.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF BELLBROOK HEREBY ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1.  The old Chapter 1244 “Zoning Permits and Certificates” of the Bellbrook Municipal 
Code is hereby repealed. 
 
 Section 2. A new Chapter 1244 “Zoning Permits and Certificates” of the Bellbrook Municipal 
Code is hereby enacted as set forth in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference, with deletions shown by strikethrough and additions by italics and underlined. 
 

Section 3. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that any 
and all deliberations of this Council that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, 
in compliance with all legal requirements, including, but not limited to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code. 

Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period 
provided by law. 

PASSED this ____day of ___________________________________, 2021. 

  
Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 



RECORD OF ORDINANCES 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-2 January 25, 2021 
 

ATTEST: 

  
Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Stephen M. McHugh, Municipal Attorney 
 
  



RECORD OF ORDINANCES 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-2 January 25, 2021 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

Sec. 1244.01.  Application; Fees. 

(a) Zoning permits or certificates, where required, shall be issued upon payment of fees as provided in 
subsection (b) hereof. The application for each zoning permit or certificate shall be accompanied by 
the proper fee, which shall be received by the Zoning Inspector and paid to the Director of Finance 
and, upon issuance of the permit or certificate, paid into the General Fund.  

 
(b) The schedule of fees for zoning permits and certificates shall be as follows: 

 
(1) Zoning permit for construction in all zones: 

(A) Up to 1,000 square feet of floor area $ 50.00 $100 
(B) Each additional 500 square feet or fraction thereof 10.00 20.00 

(2) Zoning permit for additions: 
(A) Up to 100 square feet of floor area 25.00 50.00 
(B) Each additional 100 square feet or fraction thereof 2.00 5.00 

(3) Zoning permit for fences and walls (all types) 
Each project 25.00 

(4) Zoning permit for swimming pools and required fences 25.00 30.00 
(5) Zoning permit for nonconforming uses 25.00 
(6) Zoning permit for signs 50.00 

Zoning permit for temporary sign, per occurrence 25.00 
(7) Zoning permit for a detached garage and accessory building: 

(A) Up to 100 square feet of floor area 10.00 25.00 
(B) Each additional 100 square feet or fraction thereof 5.00 

(8) Zoning permit for a temporary use: 
(A) Construction yard or office for one-half year (Sec. 18.13(1) of the 

Zoning Code) 50.00 
(B) Real estate sales office for one year (Sec. 18.13(2) of the Zoning 

Code) 50.00 
(C) Gathering - first day (Sec. 18.13(4) of the Zoning Code) 15.00 

each additional day 5.00 
(9) Certificate of zoning compliance: 

(I-1, 0-1, B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4 Districts) 20.00 50.00 
(10) All other zoning permits 10.00 
 

(c) The following fees and charges shall be paid into the General Fund and are nonrefundable, either in 
whole or in part: 
 
(1) Application for a variance 100.00 200.00 
(2) Application for a conditional use 100.00 200.00 
(3) Petition for a change, amendment, supplement, repeal or modification 

of the Zoning Code 200.00 250.00 



RECORD OF ORDINANCES 
 

Ordinance No. 2021-2 January 25, 2021 
 

 
(d) If a permit is not obtained or a fee is not paid prior to the initiation of construction, a penalty of 50 fifty 

percent of the permit fee or filing fee shall be added to the fees listed in this section if the project is in 
full compliance with the Zoning Code. 

 
(e) In the event of a returned check, a non-refundable fee of $30.00 will be collected along with the 

permit or certificate fee prior to processing of the permit or certificate. Payment of the returned check 
fee and permit or certificate fee will only be accepted in cash or money order.  Future payments may 
also be required in cash or money order.  

 



RECORD OF RESOLUTIONS 
 

Resolution No. 2021-A January 11, 2021 
 

1 

City of Bellbrook 

Resolution No. 2021-A 

A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Three Year Agreement 
between the City of Bellbrook and the International Association of Fire Fighters. 

WHEREAS, the City met with the bargaining committee represented by the International 
Association of Fire Fighters to review the terms of the labor agreement covering wages, fringe benefits 
and work rules for bargaining unit employees within the City of Bellbrook Fire Department; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agreed to terms for a three year contract starting December 1, 2020 and 
concluding November 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the City believes that this three year contract will allow for the continued provision 
of exceptional fire and emergency medical services to the residents and is in the best financial interests 
of the City. 

Now, Therefore, the City of Bellbrook Hereby Resolves: 
 
Section 1. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a three-year agreement, 

attached hereto, between the City of Bellbrook and the International Association of Fire Fighters. with 
effective dates of December 1, 2020 to November 30, 2023. 

Section 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force forthwith. 

Passed this 11th day of January 2021. 
 
 
 
  
Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council 





























































RECORD OF RESOLUTIONS 
 

Resolution No. 2021-B January 11, 2020 
 

1 

City of Bellbrook 

Resolution No. 2021-B 

A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager/Finance Director to File with the 
Greene County Auditor a Request for Advances of Taxes Collected. 

WHEREAS, the Greene County Treasurer is in the process of collecting property taxes for 2021; 
and 

WHEREAS, tax settlements will return to the City those taxes collected for the Police, Fire, 
General, and Police Pension Funds; and 

WHEREAS, these settlements will not be ready in final form until after a significant amount of the 
taxes are collected; and 

WHEREAS, such advances of taxes provide the City with a percentage of taxes already collected 
which can then be expended by the city. 

Now, Therefore, the City of Bellbrook Hereby Resolves: 
 

Section 1. That the City Manager/Finance Director is hereby authorized to request advances of 
taxes in amounts authorized by the Greene County Auditor at those times during 2021 when sufficient taxes 
have been collected. 

 
Section 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force forthwith. 

Passed this 11th day of January 2021. 

  
Michael W. Schweller, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 

  
Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council 
 





 

 
 

To: Mayor & City Council 

From: Melissa Dodd, City Manager 

Date: January 8, 2021 

Subject: January 11th   City Council Meeting  

 

• Mayor’s Announcements and Special Guests – Swearing in of Anthony BIzzarro 
 

• Ordinances  
o Introduction of Ordinance 2021-1 Ordinance Amending Zoning Code Section 20.08 

“Proceedings of the Board of Zoning Appeals” – This amendment removes the 
requirement for the individual giving oaths to be a Notary Public.  

o Introduction of Ordinance 2020-2 An Ordinance Repealing and Replacing Chapter 1244 
“Zoning Permits and Certificates” – This amends the fees charged for zoning permits and 
certificates. A comparison of area jurisdictions was completed and presented to 
Planning Board who approved of the amendments.  

• Resolutions  
o Resolution 2021-A A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into a Three Year 

Agreement with the IAFF – This is the new contract for fire fighters which expired on 
December 1, 2020. 

o Resolution 2021-B A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to File with the Greene 
County Auditor the Request for Advances of Taxes Collected – This is an annual piece of 
legislation that allows us to receive taxes on a more regular basis as they are collected 
versus just twice each year.  

• Old Business 

• New Business 

• Updates 

o New Maintenance Worker Hired – On January 4th Josh Burns started with our Service 

Department. He comes from Greene County with a wealth of mechanical and operating 

experience. We are glad to have him on the team!    

o Coronavirus Relief Funds – The evening of December 27th the deadline to expend 

coronavirus relief funds was extended from being due in 3 days to an extra year. We had 

spent at that point all but $2200. With the extension we will be able to purchase an 

additional police bicycle that was originally not set to be delivered on time. The 

remaining funds will likely go to continuing to buy cleaning supplies and other small 

ticket items.  

o Community Organization Collaboration – Earlier this week I reached out to all of our 

community organizations to propose a monthly meeting to collaborate with one 



 

 
 

another. The feedback has been positive so far. The hope is to get together to share 

what is going on in the community in an effort to assist one another and not duplicate 

effort.  

o Farmers Market – Bellbrook By Design has offered to take over the farmers market this 

year. The charge is being led by Pam Cook. I plan to assist as needed. It is the hope that 

the market will continue to grow.  

o End of Year – Staff have been very busy wrapping up for the 2020 year end and 2021 

beginning of year processes. The fourth quarter financials will be provided at the next 

meeting.  

 


	2021-1-11 Agenda
	2020-12-14 Council Meeting Minutes zoom
	Ordinance 2021-1 Amendment to Zoning Code 20.08 Witness Oath
	Ordinance 2021-1 Zoning Permits & Certificates-Fees
	2021-1-11  CM Update
	 Mayor’s Announcements and Special Guests – Swearing in of Anthony BIzzarro
	 Ordinances
	o Introduction of Ordinance 2021-1 Ordinance Amending Zoning Code Section 20.08 “Proceedings of the Board of Zoning Appeals” – This amendment removes the requirement for the individual giving oaths to be a Notary Public.
	o Introduction of Ordinance 2020-2 An Ordinance Repealing and Replacing Chapter 1244 “Zoning Permits and Certificates” – This amends the fees charged for zoning permits and certificates. A comparison of area jurisdictions was completed and presented t...
	 Resolutions
	o Resolution 2021-A A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Enter Into a Three Year Agreement with the IAFF – This is the new contract for fire fighters which expired on December 1, 2020.
	o Resolution 2021-B A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to File with the Greene County Auditor the Request for Advances of Taxes Collected – This is an annual piece of legislation that allows us to receive taxes on a more regular basis as they a...
	 Old Business
	 New Business
	 Updates
	o New Maintenance Worker Hired – On January 4th Josh Burns started with our Service Department. He comes from Greene County with a wealth of mechanical and operating experience. We are glad to have him on the team!
	o Coronavirus Relief Funds – The evening of December 27th the deadline to expend coronavirus relief funds was extended from being due in 3 days to an extra year. We had spent at that point all but $2200. With the extension we will be able to purchase ...
	o Community Organization Collaboration – Earlier this week I reached out to all of our community organizations to propose a monthly meeting to collaborate with one another. The feedback has been positive so far. The hope is to get together to share wh...
	o Farmers Market – Bellbrook By Design has offered to take over the farmers market this year. The charge is being led by Pam Cook. I plan to assist as needed. It is the hope that the market will continue to grow.
	o Greene County Grant Preparation – I have been working to apply for a newly developed grant through Greene County Department of Development to provide upgrades to our downtown. Details are still being developed but likely to include decorative signag...
	o End of Year – Staff have been very busy wrapping up for the 2020 year end and 2021 beginning of year processes. The fourth quarter financials will be provided at the next meeting.

	Resolution 2021-A Fire Contract 12-1-20 to 11-30-23
	Resolution 2021-A Fire Contract Attachment
	Resolution 2021-B Property Tax Advances
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

